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DESCRIBE^THE- PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The appearance of Talladega Court House Square district is charac- 
stic of an urban area that experienced its main growth during the later half 

of the 19th Century. The architecture of the buildings found on the square can 
be described as typical industrial store front, with each structure offering 
distinctive architectural features in varying degrees.

The south side of the court house square district contains several interesting 
buildings. The Goldberg-Lewis building is a brick store front structure, em­ 
ploying articulated pilasters, stone rusticated sash panels and stamped metal 
projecting cornice work. The structure was constructed about 1904. The 
Braswell Furniture building was built in the 1880's and is of brick construction 
using wood as an outer covering. The barber shop is located on the south side 
of the square also and is typical brick store front architecture of the late 19th 
Century. The AVCO (Seaboard Loan) building is a brick store front structure 
featuring stamped metal cornices and stained glass windows, circa 1885. The 
buildings on the south side of the court house square, as it presently appears, 
were constructed between the early 1880's and 1904. All structures are of 
brick store front construction and feature associated ornamentation.

The west side of the Talladega court house square historic district has many 
buildings of note. The Bingham building (presently Michael's Men's Store)is 
a four-story yellow brick pilaster structure with arched windows and corbeled 
frieze work, circa 1875. An elaborate front parapet is featured on the Weaver- 
Ragstall building, circa 1888. It is a two-story brick store front structure. 
The Diana Shop (C. S. Jones building) is of wood construction covered by 
brick and was built in the late 1880's. It features corbeled cornice work. 
Another example of typical period architecture is the Elmore building, circa 
1890. It is a two-story brick building. The west side of the square is also 
solidly representative of period brick industrial architecture and its buildings 
were built between 1888 and 1900.

The north side of the square continues the architecture motif set by the rest of 
the district. The City Pharmacy building employs corbeled cornices and rus­ 
ticated stone lintels. It was constructed in the late 1880's. Built in 1887, 
the Kenwin-Waldrep building features corbeled corners and is of brick store 
front design. The Otts building features arched fan windows and fan lights, 
and a central pediment structure. This building was constructed in 1887. 
Both the Buy Wise, Griffin Jewelry, and Henderson buildings feature typical 
brick store front architecture. The Griffin building was built in 1904 and the 
Buy Wise about 1900. The Henderson building was also built about 1900. The 
north side of the square, as it presently exists, was constructed between 1887 
and 1904 and is of typical brick store front architecture.

The east side of the square was burned in 1866, accounting for some of the 

older buildings' presence. The burned structures were rebuilt at once and
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still stand today. Articulated pilasters and crenelated cornice work mark the 
Talladega Hardware building as distinctive. It was constructed in the early 
1870's. The Top Dollar Store/Cato's building also features articulated pilas­ 
ters and crenelated cornices, but was built a little later, in the 1880's. 
Another example of brick store front architecture is the Wood-Weaver building, 
circa 1870. The Wright's Drug Store building has Romanesque arched windows 
with arched ports above and was built in the 1870's. The Leverette Hardware 
Co. building is the oldest structure on the square, being constructed about 
1835. It presently appears as a brick store front structure. The east side of 
the court house square has the oldest buildings on the square.

The northwest corner of the square (corner of N. and Court Streets) is occupied 
by the Talladega Post Office building, built in 1912. It is an example of the 
continuing interest in classic architecture, even after the turn of the, century. 
It features Doric order columns.

The old Chambers Opera House building is located at the southwest corner of 
the square. It is a large brick structure that was constructed in the second 
half of the 19th Century (corner of Battle and Court Streets).

Several important buildings exist within one block of the court house square. 
The Farmers Trading Post building (City Hall building), a two-story brick 
structure, is at 220 W. Battle Street and features Victorian architecture. It 
has terracotta ornamentation and gabled ends. It was built in 1892.

The Hank Fannin home, at 301 S. Court Street, is in excellent condition. It is 
a pre Civil War structure with steep gables and cathedral type windows. It is 
approximately one-half block off the square.

The old First Baptist Church building, at 148 N. East Street, was built in 1874 
and is a typical gabled-end church structure.

Built in the late 1860's, the First Presbyterian Church is also a gabled church 
structure incorporating a steeple.

The Philco-Crosley/Green Furniture building, at 230 W. Battle Street, is an 
elaborate brick store front structure, having a tri-partitioned arch entrance, 
circular brick ports on the frieze band, and iron gratings in the ports. The 
building was constructed about 1879.
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7 continued

South side of the Square:
-Goldberg-Lewis building - circa 1904.
-Braswell Furniture building - 1880's.
-Barber Shop - late 19th Century.
-AVCO (Seaboard Loan) building - circa 1885.

West side of the Square:
-Bingham building (Michael's Men's Store) - circa 1875
-Weaver-Ragstall building - circa 1888.
-Diana Shop (C. S. Jones building) - late 1880's.
-Elmore building - circa 1890.

North side of the Square:
-City Pharmacy building - late 1880's.
-Kenwin-Waldrep building - 1887.
-Otts building - 1887.
-Buy Wise Store - about 1900.
-Griffin Jewelry - 1904.
-Henderson building - about 1900.

East side of the Square:
-Talladega Hardware building - early 1870's.
-Top Dollar Store/Cato's - 1880's.
-Wood-Weaver building - circa 1870.
-Wright's Drug Store - 1870's.
-Leverette Hardward Co. building - circa 1835.

Northwest corner of Square (corner of N. and Court Streets):
-Post Office building - 1912.

Southwest corner of Square (corner of Battle and Court Streets):
-Chambers Opera House building - second half of 19th Century.

Buildings within one block of Square:
^Farmers Trading Post building, 220 W. Battle Street - 1892.
-Hank Fannin home, 301 S. Court Street - pre Civil War.
-First Baptist Church building, 148 N. East Street - 1874.
-First Presbyterian Church - late 1860's.
-Philco-Crosley/Green Furniture building, 230 W. Battle Street - circa
-Talladega Railroad Depot, 210 E. Street, S. - circa 1906.
-Isbell Bank building, 106 N. Street, E. - 1887.
-Alabama Employment Service building (old Central Hotel/Purfoy Hotel 
Annex), 117 N. Street, E. - late 19th Century.
-Talladega County Court House building - built in 1836.
-Emmie Williams home, 133 N. Street, E. - 1890's.

1879
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7. Description (cont.)

The Talladega Railroad Depot, at 210 East Street, S., has an oriental effect. 
It has a sweeping, skirted cantilevered roof. The depot was built about 1906.

Queen Anne Industrial architecture is represented in the Isbell Bank building, 
located at 106 N. Street, E. The structure was built in 1887.

At 117 N. Street, E., is the old Central Hotel/Purfoy Hotel Annex building 
(now Alabama Employment Service building). It features classic revival archi­ 
tecture with Corinthian columns. It was built in the late 19th Century.

The Talladega County Courthouse features classic revival architecture. It was 
built in 1836.

The Emmie Williams home, located at 133 N. Street, E. , was built in the 
1890's.
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Verbal Description of District Boundaries:
-Bound on N.W. side by old Post Office building.
-Bound on S.W. side by Talladega Furniture Store,
-Bound on S.E. side by Depot Building (L&N).
-Bound on N.E. side by Isbell Bank building.

Verbal Description of District Street Boundaries:
-Bound on North by North Street.
-Bound on South by Battle Street.
-Bound on East by East Street.
-Bound on East by East Street.
-Bound on West by Court Street.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Talladega County Court House Square Historic District is significant 
architecturally in that it is an example of industrial "boom town" building 
construction. Many unique and unusual design features have been incor­ 
porated into the buildings on the court house square.

The structures now found on the square were erected between the 1870's and 
early 1900's. This period marked a time of growth for the City of Talladega, 
and this growth was reflected in new buildings,^

/The court house square district, and neighboring buildings (within one block 
of the square), occupy an important place in the commercial life of Talladegc 
The buildings around the square were most important business establishment 
in the city. The court house has served as the seat of county government 
since the county was created in 1836.

The Leverette Hardware Co. building is the oldest building on the square, 
dating from its construction in 1835. It now appears as a brick store front 
structure, due to alterations.

'The buildings on the square mainly feature brick store front architecture, 
with examples of classic revival and Victorian influences.



Personal accounts (members of Talladega Historical Society) . 

"Vandiver's History of Talladega County" - Wellington Vandiver. 

"Inventory of County Archives of Alabama" - Historical Survey, 1940.
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